




DESIGN CONTROL BOARD MINUTES 
October 19, 2011, 12:30 p.m. 

 
 
Members Present: Peter Phinney, AIA, Chair (Fourth District); Helena Jubany, Vice Chair (First District); Tony 
Wong, P.E, Member (Fifth District); David Abelar, Member (Second District)  
 
Members Absent: Simon Pastucha, Member (Third District) 
 
Department Staff Present: Santos H. Kreimann, Director; Gary Jones, Deputy Director; Charlotte Miyamoto 
Division Chief; Ismael Lopez, Planner; Yeni Maddox, Temporary Secretary 
 
County Staff Present: Michael Tripp, Department of Regional Planning; Tom Faughnan, County Counsel 
 
Guests Testifying: David Nagel, The Bay Club; Bob Yamashita, The Bay Club; Gustaf Soderbergh, The Bay 
Club; Christoph Roshardt, Ritz-Carlton; Russel Tyner, Ritz-Carlton; Richard Von, See’s Candies; Jim Kirkland, 
See’s Candies 

     
1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

Mr. Phinney called the meeting to order. 
 
Mr. Wong moved to excuse the absences of Members Pastucha and Abelar, seconded by Ms. Jubany 
and passed unanimously.  Mr. Abelar arrived late to the meeting.  

  
 Mr. Wong led the pledge of allegiance. 
 
2. Approval of July  20, 2011 Minutes 
 

Ms. Jubany moved to approve the July 20 meeting minutes, seconded by Mr. Wong and passed 
unanimously. 

 
3. Public Comment 

None 
 
4. Consent Agenda 

None 
 
5. Old Business 

A. Parcel 8 - The Bay Club - Consideration of final design and Design Control Board Review related thereto – 
DCB#08-010-B 
 
Ismael Lopez presented the project staff report. 
 
David Nagel noted that the project was in plan check with the County and that the scope included renovation of 
interior and exterior of the apartment units, the clubhouse, and entire promenade.   
 
Bob Yamashita added that lower water use and drought tolerant plants would be used and clarified that the 
promenade railing fence would not be located above the seawall. 
 
Gustaf Soderbergh stated that the stucco colors were softer earth tones and that every lobby would have its 
own colored entryway and wood siding side applied finish.  



Marina del Rey Design Control Board 
October 19, 2011 
Page 2 
 

 
Public Comment 
None 
 
Board Comment    
Mr. Wong asked staff about an existing standard for light fixtures in the Marina and asked Applicant if they had 
researched with staff regarding the design of the fixtures. 
  
David Nagel stated that to meet a previous DCB request, the proposed light fixtures were changed to a more 
contemporary design. 
 
Mr. Phinney mentioned that lessees are typically encouraged to choose a design that enhances the project 
aesthetics and asked staff for input. 
 
Ismael Lopez made reference to the Marina Walk Design Guidelines considered by the DCB more than 10 
years ago that has been implemented and used by lessees.  He then noted that the proposed light fixture 
design is consistent with the style proposed by other projects in the Marina. 
 
Ms. Jubany commented on the lack of accents in the seating areas and passage ways.  She also expressed 
her concern regarding the round shape of the gate. 
 
Bob Yamashita explained that the design of the gate was due to the existing gate and added that proposed the 
design allowed for dock number identification. 

 
Mr. Phinney moved to approve the project with conditions for Applicant to explore a rhythmic 
paving, transition lighting to a night scene so up light goes off at 11p.m. and consider an 
alternative to the arched gate, seconded by Ms. Jubany and passed unanimously. 
 

6. New Business 
A. Parcel 125 – Ritz-Carlton – Consideration of exterior modifications and Design Control Board Review 
related thereto - DCB#11-007 
 
Ismael Lopez presented the project staff report. 
 
Russell Tyner stated that their main objective was to renovate the lobby. 
 
Christof Roshardt expressed his support for the proposed renovations. 
 
Public Comment 
None. 
 
Board Comment 
Ms. Jubany commended the improvements and stated that it created a more contemporary design. 
 
Mr. Phinney expressed his concern regarding the porte-cochere and the possibility of a driver losing control of 
their vehicle and veering toward hotel patrons in the sitting area. 
Russell Tyner stated it was an existing condition and that a zero curb face of green marble would be added 
and that the sitting area under the porte-cochere would be secured with dome-designed bollards. 
 



Marina del Rey Design Control Board 
October 19, 2011 
Page 3 
 

Christof Roshardt added that the removal of the valet stand would allow for easier vehicular pick-up and drop 
off and that the proposed configuration for incoming vehicles would avoid the sitting area if loss of control was 
to occur. 
 
Ms. Jubany moved to approve the project as submitted, seconded by Mr. Abelar and passed 
unanimously. 

 
B. Parcel 50 – See’s Candies – Consideration of new tenant signage, awning modification and Design Control 
Board Review related thereto – DCB#11-008 
 
Ismael Lopez presented the project staff report. 
 
Mr. Abelar asked to have the colors of the awning specified.        
 
Richard Von answered that the colors of the awning were black and white. 
 

 Public Comment 
 None. 
 
 Board Comment 

Mr. Phinney commented on his disappointment of losing the round awning and noted he would prefer to have 
an alternate design to include the round awning. 
 
Richard Von stated that they could not include stripes without creating pie segments on the dome design and 
offered to propose it back to the director of construction. 
 
Mr. Phinney stated that he didn’t want to hold up the schedule and withdrew his comment. He also asked that 
for future signage submittals, staff include in the Board’s packet, views of the signage installed at the rear of 
the building in order to better evaluate the size of the proposed sign. 
 
Ismael Lopez said he would do that and assured that the rear signage for See’s was consistent with signage of 
adjacent retail spaces. 
 
Mr. Wong moved to approve the project as submitted, seconded by Mr. Abelar and passed 
unanimously. 

 
7. Staff Reports 
All reports were received and filed.  

 
8. Adjournment 

Motion by Mr. Wong to adjourn at 2:40 PM, seconded Ms. Jubany and passed unanimously. 
 

 
     Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 
Yeni S. Maddox 

               Temporary Secretary for the Design Control Board 



H

G

A

B

C

BASIN E

D
F Bali W

ay

Panay Way

Fiji W
ay

Ballona        
 Creek

Lincoln Blvd

Via M
arina

Washington Blvd

Bora  Bora  Way

Tahiti Way

Admiralty Way

Via M
arina

Palawan Way

Mindanao Way

Marquesas Way

Adm
iralty W

ay

Parcels
111/112

Marina Harbor Apts.

Parcel
76

Western Imaging
Parcels
42/43

Marina del Rey Hotel

New Business:

®
0 750 1,500 2,250 3,000

Feet

Los Angeles County Department of Beaches and Harbors, Planning Division.

L o c a t i o n s  o f  D e c e m b e r  2 1 ,  2 0 11  D C B  I t e m s

Parcels 76
6A; Western Imaging

Old Business:
None.

Parcels 42/43
6C; Marina del Rey Hotel

Parcels 111/112
6B; Marina Harbor Apts.





























 
SMALL CRAFT HARBOR COMMISSION MINUTES 

September 14, 2011 – 10:00 a.m. 
 

 
Commissioners: David Lumian, Chair; Dennis Alfieri, Vice Chair; Allyn Rifkin, Commissioner; Russ Lesser, 
Commissioner; Vanessa Delgado, Commissioner; 
 
Department of Beaches and Harbors: Santos Kreimann, Director; Gary Jones, Deputy Director; Charlotte 
Miyamoto, Chief of Asset Management Division; Catrina Love, Senior Marketing Analyst, Community and 
Marketing Services Division. 
 
County: Lawrence Hafetz, Principal Deputy County Counsel; Lieutenant Reginald Gautt, Sheriff’s Department;  
 
Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance: 
Chair Lumian called the meeting to order at 10:05 a.m., followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Approval of Minutes: 
Commissioner Rifkin made a suggestion on the minutes to clarify his comments. 
 
Jon Nahhas commented that the minutes were not detailed enough.  
 
Motion to approve by Commissioner Alfieri, seconded by Commissioner Lesser, unanimously approved. 
 
Item 3 – Communication from the Public: 
Liz Greenberger spoke about her program called ROWLA. 
 
Commissioner Rifkin spoke about the Westside Mobility Study. 
 
Jon Nahhas commented on the lessee’s strategy for contending with high slip vacancy. 
 
Item 4a - Sheriff Regular Reports 
Lieutenant Gautt gave his report during which he mentioned the high incidence of bicycle thefts in the Marina 
and provided information on the National Bike Registry. 
 
John Rizzo spoke about a solution to the bicycle thefts. 
 
Chair Lumian asked staff to pass along to the lessees the Sheriff’s information on the National Bike Registry. 
 
Commissioner Delgado asked staff to have lessees notify their apartment tenants about the National Bike 
Registry. 
 
Mr. Jones replied the Department will send out the notice.  
 
Item 4b – Marina del Rey and Beach Special Events Report 
Ms. Love provided information on upcoming Marina events. 
 
Ms. Love reported to the Commission that the Department did not provide input on the photo essay published in 
an area newspaper. 
 
Commissioner Rifkin asked about the activities on the Discover Marina del Rey day and asked how other 
residents in the County are notified. 
 
Ms. Love provided the information. 
 



Small Craft Harbor Commission 
September 14, 2011 Meeting 
Page 2 of 4 
 
Commissioner Rifkin wanted to confirm all County residents have a way to be notified. 
 
Item 5 – Update on Marketing Activities by Lessees 
Mr. Jones delivered the report.  He also described a response he provided to an email sent by Jon Nahhas 
regarding vacancies in MDR anchorages. 
 
Jon Nahhas commented on lessee’s lack of effort to lease vacant slips. 
 
Commissioner Lesser commented that all proposed re-developments are leaving a specific number of small boat 
slips in place in their new projects.  Commissioner Lesser provided his analysis that lowering slip rental rates in 
an attempt to fill a 20% vacant marina would ultimately result in lower total income even at 100% occupancy. 
 
Larry Koch commented on the deterioration of the marinas being facilitated by opposition groups’ efforts to stall 
re-development. 
 
Chair Lumian asked about a breakdown in vacancy that delineates functionally obsolete/buddy slips/slips in 
disrepair vs. market vacant slips. 
 
Gary Jones responded that slips are individually monitored at this point. 
 
Chair Lumian commented that the information on reasons for slip vacancy would be helpful in the future.  He 
asked Mr. Kreimann about any department preference for larger boats. 
 
Mr. Kreimann commented that vacancy Marina-wide was a result of not having the right kind of product (slips of 
a specific size class) available.  He described the methodology for bundling the Master Waterside Coastal 
Development Permit to accommodate redevelopment. 
 
Commissioner Delgado commented that she felt macro-economic conditions were the cause of high slip 
vacancies. 
 
Larry Koch again commented that community opposition was needlessly delaying re-development. 
 
Jon Nahhas commented that if macro-economic conditions were at work that all harbors would have similarly 
high vacancy rates. 
 
Mr. Kreimann pointed out that he felt that the Marina had the wrong product overall. 
 
Item 6a – Approval of Renewal of Option to Amend Lease Agreement to Facilitate Redevelopment for 
Holiday Marina (Parcel 21) 
Mr. Jones provided a description of the proposed action. 
 
John Rizzo spoke in opposition of the item, about enforcing price controls and excessive returns enjoyed by the 
developer. 
 
Jon Nahhas commented that the project was withdrawn from the California Coastal Commission hearing in 
November 2009. 
 
Mr. Kreimann explained that the item was withdrawn because by the time the item was to be heard, a number of 
the Commissioners had left the meeting.  The Department then made a decision to pull the item until all of the 
Commissioners were briefed on the action before the Coastal Commission. 
 
Mr. Jones further commented that additional delays were a result of landside entitlement requirements. 
 
Commissioner Delgado asked if the project is ready to go back to the Coastal Commission. 
 



Small Craft Harbor Commission 
September 14, 2011 Meeting 
Page 3 of 4 
 
Mr. Kreimann replied that the scheduling was imminent. 
 
Steve Cordoba commented that the anchorage owners are entitled to a reasonable profit. 
 
Larry Koch commented that the length of the extension request indicates the length of time necessary to move 
forward with Marina entitlement projects. 
 
Vice Chair Alfieri asked about project financing. 
 
Sherman Gardner, lessee representative, explained that they are fully committed to moving this project forward. 
 
Commissioner Lesser commented that the entitlement projects take too long to complete. 
 
Commissioner Delgado asked if 66 months were sufficient to secure all necessary entitlements. 
 
Mr. Jones replied yes, and explained the structure of the Option extension. 
 
Chair Lumian asked if entitlements hurdles have been met by this project. 
 
Mr. Jones explained about the steps cleared by the lessee in moving forward with completing the entitlements. 
 
Motion to approve by Commissioner Lesser, seconded by Commissioner Delgado, unanimously 
approved. 
 
Item 6b – Approval of Renewal of Lease Option Agreement to Facilitate Redevelopment for Oceana 
retirement Facility (Parcel OT) 
Mr. Jones provided a description of the proposed action. 
 
John Rizzo expressed dissatisfaction with the structure of the proposed transaction.   
 
Steve Cordoba supported the project as proposed.  
 
Jon Nahhas commented about public subsidy of the project rather than using the lands for the benefit of the 
public and the project delays due to contraventions with the Local Coastal Plan. 
 
Mr. Kreimann clarified comments made by Mr. Nahhas relating to the November 2009 Coastal Commission 
hearing on Marina del Rey items relating to Parcel 21. 
 
Commissioner Lesser commented that the makeup of the Coastal Commission is such that seven votes are 
required to pass an item and that if the Commission meeting is lightly attended then prudence would be to wait 
until a larger quantity of Commissioners is in attendance. 
 
Chair Lumian requested a clarification of the action before the Commission. 
 
Mr. Kreimann described in detail the action before the Commissioners. 
 
Mr. Hafetz further described the action before the Commissioners. 
 
Mr. Jones described the nature of the extension being proposed. 
 
Larry Koch commented about the availability of parking in the area surrounding the proposed project. 
 
Chair Lumian clarified the nature of the item before the Commission. 
 



Small Craft Harbor Commission 
September 14, 2011 Meeting 
Page 4 of 4 
 
Motion to approve by Commissioner Rifkin, seconded by Commissioner Delgado, unanimously 
approved. 
 
Item 6c – Report on Recreational Opportunities for Small Boat and personal Watercraft Users 
Ms. Miyamoto provided the report. 
 
Barry Fisher spoke of Parcel NR being removed as a pipeline project, the type of public boating facility for 
Marina Beach area and his input relating to a Chace park facility. 
 
Jon Nahhas commented that the report lacked detail and about recreational boating programs. 
 
Russ Carrington described a shortage of access and storage facilities in the Marina. 
 
Mr. Kreimann described the nature of the application for grant money to build a boathouse at Chace Park. 
 
Commissioner Rifkin inquired about budgets for programs. 
 
Mr. Kreimann responded with a description of how the Department is partnering with school districts and the 
Venice Boys and Girls Club to promote water access for local children.  He also shared that the Department has 
now been budgeted for a boating section within the Department to promote small boater uses in the Marina. 
 
Commissiner Rifkin asked if there was the ability to monitor and report on the W.A.T.E.R. program usage. 
 
Mr. Kreimann answered that it was possible and that an activity report could be provided for the November 
meeting. 
 
Chair Lumian pointed out that the Marina has a long history of providing access to boaters and described that 
history. 
 
Item 7a – Staff Report  
Mr. Jones delivered the ongoing activities report. 

     
Adjournment 

      Chair Lumian adjourned the meeting at 11:55 a.m. 



 
SMALL CRAFT HARBOR COMMISSION MINUTES 

October 12, 2011 – 10:00 a.m. 
 

 
Commissioners: David Lumian, Chair; Dennis Alfieri, Vice Chair; Allyn Rifkin, Commissioner; Russ Lesser, 
Commissioner; Vanessa Delgado, Commissioner (excused absence). 
 
Department of Beaches and Harbors: Gary Jones, Deputy Director; Charlotte Miyamoto, Chief of Asset 
Management Division; Penelope Rodriguez, Program Manager I, Community and Marketing Services Division. 
 
County: Thomas Faughnan, Principal Deputy County Counsel; Deputy Richard Godfrey, Sheriff’s Department; 
Michael Tripp, Principal Regional Planner, Department of Regional Planning. 
 
Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance: 
Chair Lumian called the meeting to order at 10:05 a.m., followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Approval of Minutes: 
Commissioner Rifkin requested staff to make a correction on the September 2011 minutes to reflect his 
comments on the bike path. 
 
Commissioner Lesser also made a clarification on a statement attributed to him on the September 2011 minutes.  
 
Jon Nahhas spoke about a broken link to the agenda on the Department’s web site and about the minutes. 
 
Commissioner Rifkin moved to approve the September 2011 meeting minutes as amended, seconded by 
Commissioner Lesser, and unanimously approved. 
 
Item 3 – Communication from the Public: 
Commissioner Lesser asked staff about an article in the Argonaut describing the potential development of a 19-
story hotel with a time-share component on Parcel 9 in Marina del Rey. 
 
Mr. Tripp replied that the article was incorrect and the Planning Department is in the process of preparing a letter 
to the Argonaut to provide correct information. 
 
Jon Nahhas spoke about slip vacancies in Marina del Rey and the County’s master bicycle plan.  
  
Ms. Miyamoto responded Jon Nahhas was involved in a teleconference with Public Works and was invited to 
meet with their traffic engineers. 
 
Mr. Tripp talked about the Coastal Improvement Fund and where funds might be generated and spent. 

 
Vice Chair Alfieri asked staff about the resistance to the bike path plan. 
 
Ms. Miyamoto replied that some of the bike path cannot be aligned as desired because the location falls outside 
of County’s jurisdiction. 
 
Commissioner Lesser spoke about political structures that influence the bicycle path.  
 
Commissioner Rifkin pointed out that the agenda had included information on a public hearing of the Master 
Bicycle Plan. 
 
Item 4a - Sheriff Regular Reports 
Deputy Godfrey reported the crime rate was down in Marina del Rey. 
 



Small Craft Harbor Commission 
October 12, 2011 Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 
 
Item 4b – Marina del Rey and Beach Special Events Report 
Ms. Rodriguez gave the report. 
 
Commissioner Lesser said that participants will return to the Manhattan Pier. 
 
Chair Lumian asked staff to provide an attendance and demographic report on the Discover Marina del Rey Day. 
 
Ms. Rodriguez replied the report will be ready for the next meeting.  
 
Jon Nahhas commented the Department does not sponsor or promote recreational boating in Marina del Rey. 
 
Vice Chair Alfieri said information about Marina del Rey can be easily accessed through the Visitor’s web site 
and the Department’s web site. 
 
Mr. Jones commented that information can be accessed through the Department’s web-site and social media 
sites such as Facebook. 
 
Vice Chair Alfieri suggested staff continue to think creatively in developing and promoting Marina del Rey. 
 
Chair Lumian said Mr. Kreimann had mentioned adding a boating section within the Department. He foresees 
there will be more improvements.  
 
Mr. Jones said the Department is processing the hiring of the Chief of the Marketing Division. 
 
Item 5 – Old Business 
None 
 
Item 6a – Approval of Renewal of Option to Amend Lease Agreement to Facilitate Redevelopment for 
Bay Club Marina 
Mr. Jones provided the report. 
 
John Rizzo opposed the item and spoke of the lessee’s return on investment and that the County not generating 
enough revenue. 
 
Commissioner Lesser asked what the County’s share on the apartment rent was under this lease. 
 
Mr. Jones replied 14.5% percent after 20 years into the lease.  
 
Commissioner Lesser asked what percentage should be considered the right ground lease percentage. 
 
Jon Nahhas spoke about other agencies that operate assets and keep 75% of the revenue, as well as the 
Department not participating in the Parcel 64 sale proceeds. 
 
Chair Lumian asked Jon Nahhas about the ground lease contracts where the municipalities keep 75% of the 
revenues and which agency it was. 
 
Jon Nahhas replied he wasn’t sure but that Dana Point was one of them. 
 
Commissioner Lesser asked about the building of docks when replacement is needed and expressed his 
opinions on the sharing of revenues. 
 
Commissioner Rifkin asked when the applicant submitted for the extension. 
 
Mr. Jones said the representative of the applicant was here to present. 
 



Small Craft Harbor Commission 
October 12, 2011 Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 
 
Thomas Schiff, the applicant’s representative, spoke about the submission of the extension and renewal 
application.  
 
Chair Lumian asked staff to amend the report to reflect the added information. 
 
Mr. Jones replied yes. 
 
Chair Lumian confirmed with Mr. Jones that the project had been approved, and the item presented was to allow 
the applicant to have more time to secure financing. 
 
Mr. Jones responded the project’s entitlements had been approved and the item presented is to provide 
applicant with additional time to secure financing. 
 
Chair Lumian asked Thomas Schiff if that would be sufficient time to complete the process. 
 
Thomas Schiff responded that it would be sufficient. 
 
Chair Lumian asked staff if this is the first time the County inserted a participation clause in the Option 
Agreement. 
 
Mr. Jones replied it had been the County’s practice to participate in the refinancing or sale of leasehold interests.  
However, this is the first time that County’s participation has been added to an Option agreement. 
 
Chair Lumian asked if this addresses Jon Nahhas’ comment. 
 
Mr. Jones said yes and the County’s participation during the lease extensions had happened before but that this 
was the first time it was inserted during the Option period. 
  
Motion to approve by Commissioner Lesser, seconded by Vice Chair Alfieri unanimously approved. 
 
Item 7a – Staff Report  
Mr. Jones delivered the Ongoing Activities report. 
 
Jon Nahhas commented on the slip vacancy report, and the transparency of the Department. 
 
Commissioner Lesser asked staff about the information provided on the slip vacancy report.  
 
Mr. Jones replied the report was created based on the data that the Department received from the marina 
operators. 
 
Tim Riley spoke about the Coastal Commission meeting schedule and that his recollection is that the 
Department didn’t have direction from the Coastal Commission as to the schedule.  
 
Chair Lumian asked staff if there was a confirmed date for the Coastal Commission meeting. 
 
Mr. Jones responded there has been no confirmed date for the Coastal Commission meeting.  Once the 
Department receives a confirmed date, information will be posted on the Department’s web site. 
 
Adjournment 

      Chair Lumian adjourned the meeting at 11:00 a.m. 



1 Marina del Rey Redevelopment Projects
 Descriptions and Status of Regulatory/Proprietary Approvals

As of December 12, 2011

        

Map
Key

Parcel No. -- Project 
Name/Lessee

Lessee Name/ 
Representative

Redevelopment Proposed Massing and Parking Status Regulatory Matters

1 7 -- Tahiti Marina/K. Hakim Kamran Hakim * Complete leasehold refurbishment; 149 apartments                                
* Relocate landside boater facilities                                                            
* 214 slips + 9 end ties will not be reconstructed at this time

Massing -- 3 stories, 36'-'7" in height                                                                                                 
Parking -- Currently 465 spaces.  Possible slight reduction of parking due to relocation of landside 
boating facilities.  Impact is currently unknown.

Proprietary -- BOS action on term sheet on 9/29/09.
Regulatory -- The 30-day public review period of the MND was 3/15/10 through 4/14/10. BOS certified MND on 7/20/10. Site 
renovation approved in concept by DCB on 7/21/10. DRP Site Plan application filed on 9/13/10. Final DCB concept was approved as 
submitted without conditions on 12/15/10. DRP Site Plan application approved on 1/20/11.  B&S issued building permit on 6/22/11 
and 1st phase of construction will begin December 2011.

No Variance proposed

2 9 -- Woodfin Suite Hotel
Woodfin Hotels

Sam Hardage * Massing will change due to 4/26/11 BOS hearing request.
* New public transient docks
* 28 foot-wide waterfront promenade
* Wetland park

Massing --  Massing will change due to 4/26/11 BOS hearing request.
Parking -- All project required parking to be located on site

Proprietary -- Term sheet action by BOS February 2007
Regulatory -- DCB initial hearing May 2006, conceptual approval on June 2006.  RPC filing on November 2006. RPC continued the 
item from 10/29/08, and on 10/14/09 requested a DCB review for promenade improvements prior to returning on 2/3/10. DCB 
approval of promenade improvements on 12/17/09. RPC continued item on 2/3/10. RPC approval of Tentative Tract Map, CDP, 
CUP, Parking Permit, Variance and FEIR for landside on 3/10/10.  RPC approval of CDP for wetland park  and Plot Plan for 
waterside on 3/10/10.  Project appealed to BOS; on April 26, 2011, the BOS asked that the remodified hotel design return to RPC 
and DCB for reconsideration.

3 10/FF -- Neptune Marina/
Legacy Partners

Tim O'Brian * 526 apartments
* 161-slip marina + 7 end-ties
* 28 foot-wide waterfront promenade
* Replacement of public parking both on and off site

Massing -- Four 55' tall clustered 4-story residential buildings over parking with view corridor
Parking -- 1,012 project required parking spaces to be provided (103 public parking spaces to be 
replaced off site)

Proprietary -- Term sheet action by BOS August 2004; lease documents approved by BOS August 2008. SCHC voted on 8/10/11 to 
support recommendation for renewal of option to extend the lease agreement.
Regulatory -- DCB conceptual approval on June 2006.  RPC filing on November 2006; Scoping meeting held on April 23, 2007. 
DCB approval of promenade improvements on 12/17/09.  RPC certified EIR on 3/10/10 and recommended approval of Plan 
Amendment, CDP, CUP and Variance to BOS. Project was included in the LCP map and text amendment approved  by the BOS on 
2/1/11; on April 26, 2011, the BOS approved the project and certified the EIR. Proposed marina replacement was included in the 
County's master waterside CDP application approved by the CCC on 11/3/11. LCP amendment also approved by CCC on 11/3/11 
with modifications as suggested by Coastal staff. BOS accepted CCC changes to LCPA & CDP on 11/29/11.  Final amendment 
report will provided to CCC in December 2011. 

LCP amendment to allow apartments on Parcel FF, remove 
Open Space category, and transfer development potential from 
other development zones 
Parking permit to allow 103 replacement public parking spaces 
off site
Variance for enhanced signage and reduced setbacks

4 95/LLS -- Marina West 
Shopping Center/Gold Coast

Michael Pashaie/
David Taban

*23,500 square feet of commercial/retail/restaurant and public park 
component.

Massing -- Single story buildings  
Parking -- All parking required of the project to be located on site

Proprietary -- New Term sheet to be negotiated.
Regulatory -- To be determined.

No Variance proposed

5 145 -- Marina International Hotel/
IWF Marina View Hotel

Dale Marquis * Complete renovation of 134 rooms Massing -- Two 3-story buildings, 42' and five 1-story bungalows, 22'
Parking -- 208 parking spaces.

Proprietary -- BOS action on term sheet on 2/16/10 and on 2/8/11, approved option to extend the lease term for 39 years.
Regulatory -- DCB initial hearing November 2008; conceptual approval granted January 2009. Initial Study received by DRP May 
2009; 30-day public review period of the MND was 3/10/10 through 4/09/10. SCHC reviewed MND on 12/14/10. BOS certified the 
MND on 2/08/11. Site Plan Review application approved by DRP on 4/20/11. DCB approval of final design granted on 7/20/11.

No Variance proposed

6 OT -- Oceana Retirement Facility/
Goldrich & Kest Industries

Jona Goldrich/
Sherman Gardner

* 114-unit congregate care units plus ancillary uses
* 3,500 square feet of retail space
* Replacement of 92 public parking spaces on site
* Public accessway from Washington to Admiralty

Massing -- One 5-story residential (senior) building over ground-floor retail and parking; 65' tall
Parking -- On-site parking includes all required project parking, 92 public parking spaces (94 public 
parking spaces to be replaced off site near Marina Beach)

Proprietary -- Lease documents approved by BOS July 2008. Aproval of Renewal of Lease Option Agreement for a 66-month 
extension approved by BOS on 10/4/11.
Regulatory -- DCB conceptual approval on August 2005; RPC filing May 2006.  DCB approval of pedestrian plaza on 2/17/10.  RPC 
continued project on 10/21/09 to 12/16/09. RPC certified EIR 4/28/10 and recommended approval of Plan Amendment, CDP, CUP, 
and Parking Permit to BOS. Project was included in the LCP map and text amendment approved by the BOS on 2/1/11; On 4/26/11, 
the BOS approved the project and certified the EIR; LCP map and text amendment approved by CCC on 11/3/11 with modifications 
as suggested by Coastal staff. BOS accepted CCC changes to LCPA & CDP on 11/29/11.  Final amendment report will provided to 
CCC in December 2011. 

LCP amendment to create Active Seniors Accommodations 
Land Use Category and rezone OT from Parking to Active 
Seniors Accommodations with Mixed Use Overlay Zone, and 
transfer development potential between Development Zones
Parking permit for senior retirement facility and to allow some 
replacement public parking off site.                                           
No Variance proposed

7 21 -- Holiday Harbor Courts/
Goldrich & Kest Industries

Jona Goldrich/
Sherman Gardner

Phase 1
* 5-story, 29,300 square-foot mixed-use building (health club, yacht 
club, retail, marine office)
* 92-slip marina
* 28 foot-wide waterfront promenade and pedestrian plaza
Phase 2 (Parcel C)
* Westernmost portion of land to revert to County for public parking

Massing -- One 56' tall commercial building with view corridor/community park
Parking -- Six-level parking structure (447 spaces) to contain: all project required parking, 94 
(replacement for OT) spaces and Parcel 20 boater parking

Phase 1
Proprietary -- Lease option documents approved by BOS July 2008.  Aproval of Renewal of Lease Option Agreement for a 66-month 
extension approved by BOS on 10/4/11.
Regulatory -- DCB conceptual approval on August 2005.  RPC filing September 2006.  DCB approval of promenade on 2/17/10.  
RPC certified EIR and approved CDP, CUP, and Parking Permit on 4/28/10.  Appeal to BOS filed 5/12/10; on April 26, 2011, the 
BOS approved the project and certified the EIR. Proposed marina replacement was included in the County's master waterside CDP 
application approved by the CCC on 11/3/11. On 12/8/11, the CCC denied WeAreMdR's appeal of the BOS 4/26/11 determination 
and approval is final. 
Phase 2 (Parcel C)
DCB hearing March and April 2006 on transfer of leasehold to County.  Item continued.

CDP for landside from Regional Planning
CDP for waterside from Coastal Commission
No Variance proposed

8 42/43 -- Marina del Rey Hotel/ 
IWF MDR Hotel

Dale Marquis * Complete renovation of existing 154-room hotel and new 277-slip 
marina.

Massing -- 36' tall hotel building
Parking -- 372 Parking spaces

Proprietary -- Term sheets initialed; Parcel 42 on 9/7/09 and Parcel 43 on 8/31/09. On 5/17/11 BOS approved Option to bifurcate 
Parcels 42 and 43 into separate leaseholds, expand Parcel 43 water premises, and extend lease for 39 years.
Regulatory -- DRP application for environmental review only was signed by DBH on 4/28/10. MND public review period ended 
12/20/10. SCHC reviewed MND and Option on 3/9/11. BOS certified MND on 5/17/11. Proposed marina replacement was included 
in the County's master waterside CDP application approved by the CCC on 11/3/11. 

No Variance proposed

9 44 - Pier 44/Pacific Marina 
Venture

Michael Pashaie/
David Taban

* Build 5 new visitor serving commercial and dry storage buildings         
* 91,090 s.f. visitor serving commercial space                                           
* 143 slips + 5 end ties and 234 dry storage spaces

Massing -- Four new visitor-serving commercial buildings, maximum 36' tall and one dry stack 
storage building, 65'5" tall.  771.5 lineal feet view corridor proposed                                                        
Parking -- 381 at grade parking spaces will be provided with shared parking agreement (402 parking 
spaces are required)

Proprietary -- Term sheet to be negotiated .                                                                                                                                                 
Regulatory -- Initial DCB review during the October 2008 meeting, but project will be revised. Proposed marina replacement was 
included in the County's master waterside CDP application approved by the CCC on 11/3/11. 

Shared Parking Agreement
No Variance proposed

10 52/GG -- Boat Central/
Pacific Marina Development

Jeff Pence * 345-vessel dry stack storage facility
* 30-vessel mast up storage space
* 5,300 s.f. County boatwright facility

Massing -- 81.5' high boat storage building partially over water and parking with view corridor
Parking -- All parking required of the project to be located on site, public parking to be replaced on 
Parcel 56

Proprietary -- Term sheet action by BOS on July 2006; Option to lease approved by SCHC March 2007 and by BOS May 2007.  
BOS granted extension and modification of Option on 11/10/09.
Regulatory -- DCB review continued on March 2007, project disapproved on May 2007.  DRP application filed December 2008. 
Screencheck Draft EIR received July 2009. 2nd Screencheck Draft EIR received June 2010. Updated 2nd DEIR agency review 
period 12/06/10 through 1/05/11. Proposed marina replacement was included in the County's master waterside CDP application 
approved by the CCC on 11/3/11. LCP map and text amendment also approved by CCC on 11/3/11 with modifications as suggested 
by Coastal staff. BOS accepted CCC changes to LCPA & CDP on 11/29/11.  Final amendment report will provided to CCC in 
December 2011. 

LCP amendment to rezone site to Boat Storage and to transfer 
Public Facility use to another parcel.                               
Variance for reduced setbacks and Architectural Guidelines 
requiring that structures beat least 15 ft. from bulkhead

11 55/56/W -- Fisherman's Village/
Gold Coast

Michael Pashaie/
David Taban

* 132-room hotel
* 65,700 square foot restaurant/retail space
* 30-slip new marina
* 28 foot-wide waterfront promenade

Massing -- Nine mixed use hotel/visitor-serving commercial/retail structures (8 1- and 2-story and 1 
60'-tall hotel over ground floor retail/ restaurant), parking structure with view corridor
Parking -- On-site parking includes all project required parking, parking for Parcel 61 lessee 
(Shanghai Reds) and replacement parking from Parcel 52

Proprietary -- Lease extension Option approved by BOS December 2005.  Option expired
Regulatory -- DCB review continued on May 2006, conceptual approval in July 2006.  DRP application filed May 2007.  
Screencheck DEIR in review.

Shared Parking Agreement
Variance for reduced setbacks (side and waterfront)



2




	1 Agenda.pdf
	2 October 2011 DCB Minutes.pdf
	3 DCBItemsDecember.pdf
	6A.pdf
	6B.pdf
	6C.pdf
	6D.pdf
	7A.pdf
	7B.pdf
	7C.pdf



